Public Document Pack

Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-
Committee

Wednesday, 3rd February, 2021
at 4.00 pm
PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING

Virtual Meeting

This meeting is open to the public

Members

Three Members drawn from the Licensing
Committee

Contacts

Democratic Support Officer

Maria McKay
Email: maria.mckay@southampton.gov.uk

Executive Director Communities, Culture &
Homes

Mary D’Arcy

Tel: 023 8083 4611
Email: mary.d’arcy@southampton.gov.uk



mailto:pat.wood@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:mitch.sanders@southampton.gov.uk

PUBLIC INFORMATION

The Members of the Licensing Committee are Councillors Bunday, G Galton, B Harris,
Kataria, Laurent, McEwing, Noon, Renyard, Spicer, and Streets.

Terms of Reference

The Sub-Committee deals with
licences for which the Council is
responsible under the Licensing Act
2003 and Gambling Act 2005,
including:-

e Determination of applications for
review of premises licences and
club premises certificates;
e Determination of representations to
applications for premises licences
and club premises certificates,
variations and various permits;
o Determination of police objections
to applications for:
¢ Variation of designated
premises supervisors

e Transfer of premises licences

e Personal licences for the sale of
alcohol

o Determination of objections to
temporary event notices.

Relevant Representations

Those who have made relevant

representations may address the

meeting about the matter in which they
have an interest. New matters, not
raised within a written representation,
can not be relied upon at the hearing.

When dealing with Licensing Act

matters the Sub-Committee must

only take into account the following
statutory Licensing Objectives:-

e prevention of crime and disorder

e public safety

e prevention of public nuisance

e protection of children from harm

Likewise, when dealing with

Gambling Act matters the Sub

Committee must only take into

account the statutory Licensing

Objectives below:-

e Preventing gambling from being a
source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or
being used to support crime

e Ensuring that gambling is
conducted in a fair and open way,
and

e Protecting children and other
vulnerable persons from being
harmed or exploited by gambling

Southampton: Corporate Plan 2020-2025 sets out
the four key outcomes:

e Communities, culture & homes - Celebrating
the diversity of cultures within Southampton;
enhancing our cultural and historical offer
and using these to help transform our
communities.

e Green City - Providing a sustainable, clean,
healthy and safe environment for everyone.
Nurturing green spaces and embracing our
waterfront.

e Place shaping - Delivering a city for future
generations. Using data, insight and vision to
meet the current and future needs of the city.

o Wellbeing - Start well, live well, age well, die well;
working with other partners and other services to
make sure that customers get the right help at
the right time

Fire Procedure:- In the event of a fire or other
emergency a continuous alarm will sound, and you will
be advised by Council officers what action to take.
Access:- Access is available for disabled people.
Please contact the Democratic Support Officer who will
help to make any necessary arrangements.

Smoking policy:- The Council operates a ho-smoking
policy in all civic buildings.

Mobile Telephones:- Please switch your mobile
telephones to silent whilst in the meeting

Use of Social Media:- The Council supports the video
or audio recording of meetings open to the public, for
either live or subsequent broadcast. However, if, in the
Chair’s opinion, a person filming or recording a meeting
or taking photographs is interrupting proceedings or
causing a disturbance, under the Council’s Standing
Orders the person can be ordered to stop their activity,
or to leave the meeting. By entering the meeting room,
you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of
those images and recordings for broadcasting and
or/training purposes. The meeting may be recorded by
the press or members of the public. Any person or
organisation filming, recording or broadcasting any
meeting of the Council is responsible for any claims or
other liability resulting from them doing so. Details of the
Council’'s Guidance on the recording of meetings is
available on the Council’s website.

Dates of Potential Meetings Municipal Year
2020/21

Meetings are scheduled on a weekly basis usually
at 4pm on a Wednesday evening.



CONDUCT OF MEETING

Terms of Reference Business to be discussed

The terms of reference are contained in Only those items listed on the attached

the Council’s Constitution. agenda may be considered at this meeting.
Rules of Procedure Quorum 3

The meeting is governed by the The minimum number of appointed Members
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) required to be in attendance to hold the
Regulations 2005 and the Council meeting is 3.

Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of
the Constitution, so far as it is applicable.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct,
both the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other Interest”
they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in
any matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or
wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

(ii) Sponsorship:

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton
City Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense
incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of
the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

(i) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the
you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under
which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has
not been fully discharged.

(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton.

(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
Southampton for a month or longer.

(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests.
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge)
has a place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either:
a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body, or
b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value
of the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial
interest that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.



Other Interests

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an ‘Other Interest’ in any
membership of, or occupation of a position of general control or management in:

Any body to which they have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council

Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature

Any body directed to charitable purposes

Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy
Principles of Decision Making

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

e proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);

e due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

e respect for human rights;

e a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;

e setting out what options have been considered,;

e setting out reasons for the decision; and

e clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

e understand the law that regulates the decision-making power and gives effect to it.
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

e take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

e leave out of account irrelevant considerations;
e act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;

e not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

e comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual
basis. Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward
funding are unlawful; and

e act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



AGENDA

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR

To appoint a Chair for the purposes of this meeting.

2 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee made in accordance
with the Licensing Act 2003.

3 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct,
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the
agenda for this meeting.

4 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

5 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING) (Pages
1-4)

To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 26
January 2021, and to deal with any matters arising, attached.

6 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - LEGAL ADVICE

At a predetermined point during the consideration of all items the Sub-Committee may
move into private session in order to receive legal advice when determining issues.
The parties to the hearing, press and the public, unless otherwise excluded by the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, will be invited to return immediately
following that private session at which time the matter will be determined and the
decision of the Sub-Committee will be announced.

7 APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCE - AVENUE ROAD LOCAL , 92
AVENUE ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO14 6TX (Pages 5 - 86)

Tuesday, 26 January 2021 Executive Director Communities, Culture & Homes



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL
LICENSING (LICENSING AND GAMBLING) SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26 JANUARY 2021

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Present: Councillors Kataria, McEwing and Renyard

ELECTION OF CHAIR

In accordance with S.14 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005,
the hearing was held using video conferencing and the public were able to view a
live stream of the proceedings using a web link published on the council website.
This was in the interest of public safety given the isolation restrictions imposed by
the Prime Minister as a result of the public health risks due to the Coronavirus or
Covid-19. As a result, the Council offices were closed to the public and this licensing
sub-committee was held remotely with parties to the hearing participating by way of
conference call.

RESOLVED that Councillor McEwing be elected as Chair for the purposes of this
meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS
RESOLVED that none were noted.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6 January 2021 be approved
and signed as a correct record.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - LEGAL ADVICE

RESOLVED that the Sub-Committee move into private session in order to receive
legal advice when determining issues. Following that private session, at which time
the matter would be determined, written confirmation of the decision of the Sub-
Committee would be distributed to all parties to the hearing.

APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE — CENO BAR AND
RESTAURANT, 119 HIGHFIELD LANE SOUTHAMPTON SO17 1AQ

All parties will receive formal written confirmation of the decision and reasons.

This hearing was held as a virtual meeting using Microsoft Teams and was streamed
live online for the press and public to view via the Live Events platform.

The Sub Committee considered the application in accordance with the Licensing Act
2003 (Hearings) and Regulations 2005 (as amended). The Sub Committee also took

25
Page 1



into consideration the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the Human Rights Act 1998.
In reaching its decision the Sub Committee was mindful of Procedure Rules as set
out in Part 4 of the Constitution, so far as it was applicable.

The Sub Committee also had due regard for the Equality Act 2010. The Council’s
statement of Licensing Policy and statutory guidance was also taken into account.

The Sub-Committee considered very carefully the application for review of the
premises licence at Ceno Bar and Restaurant, 119 Highfield Lane, Southampton,
SO17 1AQ. The application to review related to two licensing objectives: The
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. The Sub Committee took into
account the written report presented to it, and also, video and written evidence
submitted to the Sub Committee by Hampshire Constabulary in advance of the
hearing. The panel also received written representations from the Licensing
Authority, Public Health, and the Premises License Holder. The latter comprised of
witness statements.

The Sub-Committee considered the representations, both written and given orally
today, by all parties. The Sub-Committee heard from the applicant, PC Scott, Mr
Bates, the Licensing Manager, and Mr Malcolm Gibney, Barrister for the licensed
premises holder Mr Darby. Mr Darby was in attendance but felt unable to give
evidence or answer direct questions.

The Sub-Committee considered the decision in confidential session in accordance
with the Licensing Act (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

In light of all of the above the Sub-Committee:

RESOLVED that the premises licence be revoked.

Reasons

The Sub-Committee considered very carefully the application of PC Lee Scott. It has
given due regard to the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Objectives, statutory
guidance and the adopted statement of Licensing Policy.

The Sub-Committee considered the representations, both written and given orally
today, by all parties. The Human Rights Act 1998, The Equality Act 2010 and The
Crime and Disorder Act 1998, Section 17 have been considered whilst making the
decision.

The Sub-Committee considered all the options set out in Section 52(4) Licensing Act
2003 (namely):

To modify the conditions of the licence

To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence
To remove the DPS

To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months
To revoke the licence

26
Page 2



The Sub-Committee was concerned that this was a very serious incident, which
breached the Coronavirus regulations, which in turn impinged on the licensing
objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.

Covid 19 is a deadly virus which presents a very significant threat to the health and
lives of many, and its control is something the world is striving for, at great cost, in
every sense of the word. It is evident that Mr Darby failed to recognise the
seriousness of the threat to public health that Covid 19 represents and the
importance of behaving in accordance with both the legislative provisions and
government guidance in order to control its spread. We ignore those steps not just at
our own peril, but at the peril of others we come into contact with.

Whilst the Sub-Committee considered the reasons given for people to be on the
premises at the time, whether these are accepted or not, there was no acceptable
reason for drinking to be taking place.

The Sub-Committee was also concerned at an apparent lack of concern shown by
Mr Darby for his responsibilities as DPS and Premises License Holder in view of the
current pandemic and a period of lockdown. Examples of this were his lack of
cooperation with the police, his unwillingness to share CCTV evidence, and the
notices on the premises which were at best open to misinterpretation. It was also
noted that he failed to follow advice to conduct meetings off site.

As DPS, Mr Darby had failed in his duties and responsibilities. The Sub-Committee
deliberated long and hard and came to the conclusion that revoking the licence was
the only proportionate response. This is particularly the case, as Mr Darby is both the
DPS and the Premises Licence Holder. Therefore, removing him as DPS would not
resolve the issues.

There is a statutory right of appeal against this decision to the Magistrates’ Court
within 21 days of formal notification, which will set out that right in full.

27
Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

DECISION-MAKER LICENSING (LICENSING & GAMBLING) SUB COMMITTEE

SUBJECT HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A
PREMISES LICENCE — Avenue Road Local 92 Avenue Road
Southampton SO14 6TX

DATE OF HEARING Wednesday 03 February 2021 16.00

REPORT OF SERVICE DIRECTOR — COMMUNITIES,CULTURE AND HOMES
E-mail licensing@southampton.gov.uk

Application Date : 11th December 2020 Application Received 11th December 2020
Application Valid : 11th December 2020 Reference : 2020/04133/01SPRN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100019679

Representations from Responsible Authorities

Responsible Authority Satisfactory?

No Response
Safeguarding Children

Satisfactory
Fire Service

Satisfactory
Environmental Health - Licensing

No Response

Home Office

Page 5
001




Building Control

No Response

Public Health Manager

No Response

Police - Licensing

Agreed Conditions

Trading Standards

No Response

Other Representations

Name

Address

Contributor Type

Mr. Alejandra Recio

148 Earls Road
Southampton
S014 6TX

Resident

Mr Philip Steart

76 Gordon Avenue
Southampton
S0O14 6WD

Resident

Ms. Susan Swallow

78 Gordon Avenue
Southampton
S0O14 6WD

Resident

Mr. Chris Jackson

100 Alma Road
Southampton
SO14 6UW

Resident

Mrs Julia Webb

101 Alma Road
Southampton
S014 6UY

Resident

Ms. Anita Hockey

35 Cambridge Road
Portswood
Southampton

SO14 6TA

Resident

Page 6
002




Mr. S Afzal

82 Gordon Avenue
Southampton
SO14 6TA

Resident

Dr Sarah Hall

2 Wykeham Close
Southampton
SO16 7L.Z

Resident

Ms. Hilary Jackson

39 Gordon Avenue
Southampton
SO14 6WH

Resident

Ms. Linda Pritchard

54 Gordon Avenue
Portswood
Southampton SO14 6WD

Resident

Mr Michael Ryan

82 Cambridge Road
Southampton
SO14 6WA

Resident

Mrs Barbro Fitzjohn

104 Alma Road
Southampton
SO14 6UW

Resident

Maggie O'Connor and
Mike Bell

60 Gordon Ave
Southampton
SO14 6WD

Resident

Ms Josephine Dahle

88 Gordon Avenue
Portswood
Southampton
SO14 6WD

Resident

Ms. Cath Wigham

146 Earls Road
Southampton
SO14 6TL

Resident

Mrs Barbara Matcham

First Floor Flat
69 Alma Road
Southampton
S014 6UQ

Resident

Page 7
003




OARA Chair

Mr. John Hayward 43 Avenue Road Local
Southampton Neighbourhood
Group
SO14 6TW
9 Avenue Road Resident
Southampton

Ms. Ann Woolnough SO14 6TR

132 Earls Road Resident
Southampton

Miss Suzanne Wright  |SO14 6TL
75 Avenue Road Resident
Southampton

Mr. Nigel Barnes-Evans [SO14 6TW

8 Livingstone Road Resident
Southampton

Mr John Eastmond S0O14 6WN
Councillor For Bevois Ward Ward Councillor

Southampton City Council

Cllr Jacqui Rayment Civic Centre
SO14 7LY
Legal Implications

The legislation specifically restricts the grounds on which the sub-committee may refuse an applicati
for grant of a premises licence, or impose conditions. The legislation provides for a presumption of
grant of an application for a premises licence, subject to the determination of the application with a
view to promoting the licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local community. In doing so
the sub-committee must give appropriate weight to:

o the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

o the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;
e its own statement of licensing policy

e the Statutory Guidance

An application may be refused in part and thereby only permit some of the licensable activities
sought.

An applicant for grant of a premises licence whose application has been refused, or who is
aggrieved by conditions imposed, may appeal against the decision to the Magistrates' Court. Any
other person, who made a valid representation, may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the

Page 8
004



decision to grant the application or against any conditions imposed.

In considering this application the sub-committee is obliged to consider the application in
accordance, in particular, with both the Licensing Act 2003(Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as
amended) and the rules of natural justice

The practical effect of this is that the sub-committee must makes its decision based on evidence
submitted in accordance with the legislation and give adequate reasons for reaching its decision.

Only persons that made relevant representations or their representative, within the time limits, will be
allowed to present evidence and this will be restricted to the points raised in their written
representation. Any evidence used to expand upon specific points already raised in a written
representation should be served upon all parties in good time before the hearing date in order to
allow proper consideration. A failure to properly serve any such additional evidence in advance is
likely to mean it cannot be produced or relied up at the hearing.

The sub-committee must also have regard to:

e The Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the sub-committee under a duty
to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of
those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and
disorder in its area.

¢ The Human Rights Act 1998
The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the
European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the sub-committee to act in a
way that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with the rights
protected by the Act. Any action undertaken by the sub-committee that could have an
effect upon another person’s Human Rights must be taken having regard to the
principle of proportionality - the need to balance the rights of the individual with the
rights of the community as a whole. Any action taken by the sub-committee which
affect another's rights must be no more onerous than is necessary in a democratic
society. The matters set out in this report must be considered in light of the above
obligations.

Copies of the application for grant of a premises licence and the representations to it are annexed tc
this report.

Equality Act 2010

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have due regard to the need to
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or
under this Act. It also requires the Council to advance equality of opportunity and foster good
relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it. This means having due regard to the need to removing or minimising disadvantages
suffered, taking steps to meet the needs of persons, encouraging persons to participate in public
life, tackling prejudice and promoting understanding. The relevant protected characteristics are:
age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual
orientation.

SUMMARY
Applicant Agni Retails Ltd
Designated Premises Supervisor Mothilal Kailasanathan

Page 9
005



Licensable Activities.

Supply by retail of alcohol
Monday 06:00 -23:00
Tuesday 06:00 - 23:00
Wednesday 06:00 - 23:00
Thursday  06:00 - 23:00
Friday 06:00 - 23:00
Saturday 06:00 - 23:00
Sunday 06:00 - 23:00

Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

1 SINGLE CANS & ABV

No single cans of beers ciders or lager shall be sold to customers.
No beers, ciders or lager of 6.5% ABV or over shall be sold by retail unless they in a
pack of 4 or more as supplied by the manufacturer.

2 CCTV

A colour recording CCTV system that captures images from the main public areas must
be fully operational whilst licensable activities are taking place.

The system shall be able to cope with all levels of illumination.

The recording equipment shall be stored and operated in a secure environment with
limited access, to avoid damage, theft, unauthorised viewing and maintain the integrity
of the system.

The system shall be serviced at twelve monthly intervals and maintained to a standard
that is acceptable to the police licensing department responsible for the area.

The system clock shall be checked regularly for accuracy taking account of GMT and
BST.

Digital systems shall have sufficient storage capacity for 28 days evidential quality
recordings (minimum 4 frames per second).

The images produced shall be date and time stamped.

A notice shall be displayed at the entrance to the premises advising that CCTV is in
operation.

An additional recording CCTV camera shall be installed and fully operational whilst the
venue is open to the public to cover the area immediately outside the front of the
premises.

It is important that the Police are able to access data from the systems quickly and
easily and therefore provision shall be made that at all times a person is in attendance
who is nominated by the data controller who has access to the secure area who is able
to operate the equipment

Ensure all operators receive training from the installer when equipment is installed and
that this is cascaded down to new members of nominated staff.

Have a simple operator's manual available to assist in replaying and exporting data
(particularly important with digital systems) and to produce images to the police
responsible authority for the purpose of the prevention and detection of crime as long as

Page 10
006



the request is lawful and complies with the data protection Act.
In the event of a technical failure of the CCTV equipment, the premises licence holder or
DPS shall notify the police licensing department responsible for the area within 24 hours.

3 REFUSALS & INCIDENT BOOK

A written log shall be kept of all incidents & refusals including refusals to sell alcohol.
The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that the refusals log is checked, signed and
dated on a weekly basis by the venue manager/manageress.

The log will be kept and maintained at the premises and will be available for inspection
immediately upon request by Hampshire Constabulary and any responsible authority.
The record of incidents & refusals will be retained for 12 months.

4 CHALLENGE 25

There will be a Challenge 25 policy operating at the premises. Challenge 25 means that
the holder of the premises licence shall ensure that every individual, who visually
appears to be under 25 years of age and is seeking to purchase or be supplied with
alcohol at the premises or from the premises, shall produce identification proving that
individual to be 18 years of age or older.

Acceptable identification for the purposes of age verification will include a photo card
driving licence, passport or photographic identification bearing the "PASS" logo and the
persons date of birth.

If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce acceptable means of identification, no
sale or supply of alcohol will be made to or for that person.

'‘Challenge 25' posters shall be displayed in prominent positions at the premises.

5  STAFF TRAINING

Before commencing their duties all new staff must receive information and training
concerning the sale of age-restricted products. This training must cover their legal
responsibilities and action to be taken in the event of suspicions being aroused that
someone is purchasing or attempting to purchase an item under the legal age. All
employees will sign a letter to acknowledge that they have completed this training and
have understood their responsibilities on this area. This training should be reviewed and
updated at reasonable intervals but at least annually.

The applicant has agreed conditions required by the police for their application and these are
shown above. Additional conditions on the operating schedule include:

e Spirits will be displayed behind the counter and will not be self service.

¢ Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at all exit points to advice customers to respect
the needs of the local community and of acceptable behaviour in public spaces when
leaving the premises

e The premises staff shall ensure the pavement outside the premises will be swept daily.

Included In Report

Application

Plan

Police Agreed Conditions
21 Public Representations

Page 11
007



1 Ward Councillor Representation
Licensing Statement Police
Hearing Procedures

Page 12
008



Page 13
009



Page 14
010



Page 15
011



Page 16
012



Page 17
013



Page 18
014



Page 19
015



Page 20
016



Page 21
017



Page 22
018



Page 23
019



Page 24
020



Page 25
021



Page 26
022



Page 27
023



Page 28
024



Page 29
025



Page 30
026



Page 31
027



Page 32
028



Page 33
029



Page 34
030



Page 35
031



Page 36
032



REFUSALS & INCIDENT BOOK

A written log shall be kept of all incidents & refusals including refusals to
sell alcohol. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that the refusals log
is checked, signed and dated on a weekly basis by the venue
manager/manageress.

The log will be kept and maintained at the premises and will be available for
inspection immediately upon request by Hampshire Constabulary and any
responsible authority.

The record of incidents & refusals will be retained for 12 months.

STAFF TRAINING

Before commencing their duties all new staff must receive information and
training concerning the sale of age-restricted products. This training must
cover their legal responsibilities and action to be taken in the event of
suspicions being aroused that someone is purchasing or attempting to
purchase an item under the legal age. All employees will sign a letter to
acknowledge that they have completed this training and have understood
their responsibilities on this area. This training should be reviewed and
updated at reasonable intervals but at least annually.

CHALLENGE 25

There will be a Challenge 25 policy operating at the premises. Challenge 25
means that the holder of the premises licence shall ensure that every
individual, who visually appears to be under 25 years of age and is seeking
to purchase or be supplied with alcohol at the premises or from the
premises, shall produce identification proving that individual to be 18 years
of age or older.

Acceptable identification for the purposes of age verification will include a
photo card driving licence, passport or photographic identification bearing
the “PASS” logo and the persons date of birth.

If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce acceptable means of
identification, no sale or supply of alcohol will be made to or for that person.
‘Challenge 25’ posters shall be displayed in prominent positions at the
premises.

SINGLE CANS & ABV

No single cans of beers ciders or lager shall be sold to customers.

No beers, ciders or lager of 6.5% ABV or over shall be sold by retail unless
they in a pack of 4 or more as supplied by the manufacturer.

From: Licensing & Alcohol Harm Reduction Team Mailbox

Sent: 11 December 2020 15:07

To: Hawey, Mark 25491 |

Subject: FW: New premises licence application documents, Avenue Road Local, 92 Avenue Road,
Portswood, Southampton, SO14 6TX

Hi Mark,

Please can you deal with this app, thanks Bob

From: Richard Baker_]

Sent: 11 December 2020 06:43
To: licensing@southampton.gov.uk

Cc: Licensing & Alcohol Harm Reduction Team Mailbox <} G

Page 37
033




Subject: New premises licence application documents, Avenue Road Local, 92 Avenue Road,
Portswood, Southampton, SO14 6TX

Dear Licensing Officer,

I am a licensing and planning consultant acting on behalf of the applicants for the above
attached application.

| would be grateful if a call can be made to me on the number below asap to collect the licence
fee as the notices and newspaper dates are linked to the application commencing its
consultation as from tomorrow.

Many thanks for your kind assistance.

Keep safe

Kind regards

Richard

Richard Baker

Director

RB Retail & Licensing Services Limited

I\/Iobile:_

Richard W R Baker -- RB Retail & Licensing Services Limited - Telephone:_,
Facsimile: || . A"' correspondence to: RB Retail & Licensing Services Limited - 23
Magister Drive, Lee on the Solent, Portsmouth, Hampshire, PO13 8GE. This email and any
attachments or files transmitted with it are strictly confidential and intended solely for the
named addressee. It may contain privileged and confidential information and if you are not the
intended recipient you must not copy, distribute or use the communication in any other way. If
you receive this email in error please contact the sender as soon as possible and delete the email
and any attachments. We believe that this email is virus free but we cannot guarantee this.
Recipients should therefore check for viruses and similar harmful devices and we cannot accept
liability for any which may occur.

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

B e e e e s S e e e S e e e e e e e T e e e e e e

Hampshire Constabulary currently use the Microsoft Office 2013 suite of applications. Please be
aware of this if you intend to include an attachment with your email. This communication contains
information which is confidential and may also be privileged. Any views or opinions expressed are
those of the originator and not necessarily those of Hampshire Constabulary. It is for the exclusive
use of the addressee(s). If you are not the intended recipient(s) please note that any form of
distribution, copying or use of this communication or the information in it is strictly prohibited and may
be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error please forward a copy to:
informationsecurity@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk and to the sender. Please then delete the e-mail and
destroy any copies of it. DO NOT use this email address for other enquiries as the message will not
be responded to or any action taken upon it. If you have a non-urgent enquiry, please call the police
non-emergency number ‘101", If it is an emergency, please call 999. Thank you.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

Page 38
034



Young, Tricia
From: Nige!

Sent: 16 December 2020 10:01
To: Licensing
Subject: FW: Application objection

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

From: Nigel

Sent: 16 December 2020 10:00

To: 'licensing@southampton.go.uk’ <licensing@southampton.go.uk>
Subject: Application objection

Dear Sir/Madam,

Application 2020 04133/01SPRN

92,Avenue Road, Portswood (former Squirrels electrical shop)

| would like to object to the proposed off licence at 92, Avenue Road, Portswood.

The premises are in very poor condition and should be demolished as previously intended. They cause damp to the
neighbours house at number 90,and lower the image of the area being very run down. | suggest you come and view
them if you have not already. The premises do not enhance the area and are dangerous. Some of the frontage has

fallen onto the pavement in the past.

There are numerous other sources of alcohol available in the local area. There are at least seven outlets within a
small radius.

The location is at a busy crossroads junction, which has double-yellow lines and no parking spaces. It is a walking
route to and from the local primary school. A commercial premises here would simply add to traffic congestion,
cause litter, noise and possible attract anti-social behaviour. The shop front is currently a meeting place for drinkers
and as litter pickers in the area, we regularly clear the rubbish they leave in the entrance.

The proposed opening hours seem excessive...06.00 to 23.00.This will create noise and additional traffic throughout
the day, especially in the evenings. It is a residential area. Most other commercial premises have been closed over
the years, including two corner pubs, and the area is much better for it. To reverse this trend seems regrettable.

This premises has recently changed hands as the previous owner was not granted planning permission for
residential development.

The local resident’s association...OARA... also object to this application.
Please lodge this objection and send an acknowledge to me.

Very many thanks,

Nigel Barnes-Evans

Page 39
035



Page 40
036



From:

To: Licensing
Subject: Objection to proposed Off Licence and Convenience store 92 Avenue Road
Date: 04 January 2021 17:35:45

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Objection to planning proposal for 92, Avenue Road, Portswood (formerly Squirrels)

As residents of 26 years living nearby, we object to the planned new use for the redundant
derelict building.

Other corner sites previously pubs or commercial premises in the neighbourhood have now been
made into residential properties. Indeed, the previous owner intended to do the same with this
plot. Has council policy changed in this respect?

We presume that the staff/owner will not live in the premises(!) or locally, so they will need to
park a vehicle nearby no doubt. Parking is at premium already. Also, if security alarms go off out
of hours, this will annoy residents and probably take a while to cancel if the owner lives miles
away.

There are several other convenience stores and alcohol sellers in the nearby area and this one
seems to offer nothing in terms of quality or variety.

Where will trade waste bins be located? Litter associated with drinking is already a problem in
our area which we litter pick on a regular basis...we don’t need any more !

How and when will deliveries be made?

There is no space for customer parking without using double yellow lines and causing a hazard at
this junction.

The shop will be on a walking route to local schools.

There only appears to be one entrance /exit making this a security risk and dangerous for the
assistant or customers if a dangerous situation develops.

They want the license to start on 9 January. | can’t see the premises being significantly improved
by then. Has it has a structural survey and electrical safety certificate for example? The
neighbour suffers damp ingress from the leaking roof | believe. Parts of the frontage have fallen
onto the pavement in recent months posing a risk to the public.

| could go on.

Nigel Barnes-Evans

75 Avenue Road

SO14 6TW

Page 41
037



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk

To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 29 December 2020 12:56:37

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 12:56 PM on 29 Dec 2020 from Miss Suzanne Wright.

Application Summary

Address: 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Miss Suzanne Wright
Email I
Address: 132 Earls Road, Southampton SO14 6TL

Comments Details

Commenter
Type:
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Neighbour

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 12:56 PM on 29 Dec 2020 Dear Reader,
I strongly object to the application on the grounds below,
and my opinions are stated in good faith, having lived in the
area for decades:
- Earls Road / Avenue Road is primarily a residential area,
which also includes children, and which the OARA Residents
Association continues to strive to nurture as a community
space so far, for over a decade. Supplying alcohol plus
associated goods like tobacco, does not support this ethos.
- Continuous disruption to traffic in an already constricted
road / pavement space due to business activity of deliveries,
and footfall.
- Constant increased noise due to very long opening times,
seven days a week.
- Anti-social behaviour: as currently demonstrated by
groups of people using the corner of 92 Avenue Road as a
meeting place for drinking & smoking in the street, which
also makes the area feel unsafe.
- Unnecessary business: the area is already over-subscribed
with several shops already serving alcohol in walking
distance of the premise. These are also quite rightly situated
away from the residential area, as a main row of shops
along main roads, notably Lodge Road, Bevois Valley Road,
Portswood Road, Bannister Road. The area also does not

Page 42
038



need any more 'healthy competition'.
- Increased litter from customers, plus placing public bins
nearby on the pavement also look unsightly.

Yours faithfully,
Miss S. Wright

Page 43
039



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk

To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 30 December 2020 15:08:22

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 3:08 PM on 30 Dec 2020 from Mr John Eastmond.

Application Summary

Address: 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mr John Eastmond
Email ]
Address: 8 Livingstone Road, Southampton SO14 6WN

Comments Details

Comr_nenter Other
Type:

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 3:08 PM on 30 Dec 2020 | object to this application as there
are several places nearby to buy alcohol already.

I also object because | believe the customers and their cars
will cause a public nuisance in such a crowded residential
area with narrow roads.

The deliveries to such an establishment will be very difficult
because of the narrow Earls road with cars on either side of
the road.

Also a group of people already congregate around that area
drinking in the street and the presence of an off-licence will
only encourage them.

Page 44
040



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk

To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 31 December 2020 11:37:10

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 11:37 AM on 31 Dec 2020 from Mrs Barbara Matcham.

Application Summary

Address: 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Barbara Matcham
Email I
Address: First Floor Flat, 69 Alma Road, Southampton SO14 6UQ

Comments Details

Commenter
Type:
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Neighbour

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 11:37 AM on 31 Dec 2020 | wish to strongly object to this
application, 1 have lived in this area for over 30 years and
have seen an enormous increase in the amount of street
drinking, which this type of business encourages. This
property is on the corner of Avenue and Earls Road, both
very narrow with severe parking issues day and night, and
parking restrictions directly outside the premises. Deliveries
will be a problem, possibly blocking the road. There is an
abundance of places to buy alcohol and groceries in the near
vicinity i.e. Lodge Road and Portwood Road. There will be an
enormous increase in refuse, where will the bins be kept,
even if there is space within the boundaries of the property,
it will have to be put on the pavement to be collected, the
pavements are not wide enough to accommodate
commercial bins.

Page 45
041



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk

To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 03 January 2021 19:48:33

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 7:48 PM on 03 Jan 2021 from Mrs Barbro Fitzjohn.

Application Summary

Address: 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Barbro Fitzjohn
Email I
Address: 104 Alma Road, Southampton SO14 6UW

Comments Details

Commenter
Type:
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Neighbour

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 7:48 PM on 03 Jan 2021 Within some 100 meters of 92
Avenue Road there are already at least 6 establishment with
them right to sell alcohol.

Although this is a residential area there are also many
multiple occupancy houses and hostels for vulnerable
people. Rising problems with drink and drugs is ever
present. Car parking is also a near impossible by the corner
of 92 Avenue road- Earls road. To seak licence from early
morning to late in the evening to sell alcohol will cause
havoc to this fragile area of the city.

Page 46
042



From:

To: Licensing

Subject: Application for Avenue Road Local, 92 Avenue Road, Southampton SO14 6TX - expires 08 January 2021
Date: 03 January 2021 18:05:34

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Licensing Team
Happy New Year.

My name is Alejandra Recio and my address is 148 Earls Road, SO14 6TL. | am writing
about the application on Avenue Road Local, 92 Avenue Road, SO14, 6TX.

Living a few houses from the address above, | would like to write about the problems with
the nature of the business described in the application.

On Earls Road, across 92 Avenue Road, there are four garages. One of them is my
property. It is common, especially in good weather for groups of people to gather in front
of these garages to drink and smoke. This is possible because since the garages are not
directly attached to the houses, the driveways are quiet and allow people to sit and spend
some time there. The problem with that is not only noise or disturbance, but also the
amount of rubbish that you find periodically in front of these garages, especially broken
glass bottles that are quite dangerous to leave on the pavement. | take care of the area of
my driveway, and have now become used to sweeping cigarette butts, take-away
containers, occasional vomit, and all the glass that's left there. To me, it is more important
to avoid an accident than the nuisance of cleaning after someone else's parties. However, if
this kind of problem happens without an off-license that is literally in front of these
garages, it is very easy to think that the whole area will turn into a street party much more
often if alcohol can be bought so close.

On normal non-covid times, Earls Road is a street used by a lot of school-aged children
and many mornings | have thought about the messages that we give children with
pavements that look like that. With the high street and Lodge Road so nearby, | question
the need to set up this business in a place that will likely increase the number of reports to
fix my street from residents in the area.

It would be fantastic to see a business in that corner, a place for residents to meet and have
some food and spend time. With so many students in the area, a nice place with wi-fi will
surely attract customers. | am sure there is potential for a cafe with a bookshop for
instance. The space in 92 Avenue Road will offer more opportunity to the community if
used for a different business than the one in the application, and more importantly, a
different business will not contribute to the problems that already happen in the area.

Thank you for your attention.

Best regards

Page 47
043



From:

To: Licensing
Subject: Re: Public Representation - Avenue Road Local - 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 04 January 2021 09:47:51

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

My home address
88 Gordon av
Portswood
Southampton
SO146WD
Regards
Josephine Dahle

Sent from my iPhone
Phine Dahle Psychotherapist
MA Ed., UKCP regd.& Accredt.

On 4 Jan 2021, at 09:04, Licensing <Licensing@southampton.gov.uk> wrote:

Ms Winther-Dahle

Thank you for your representation but in its current form it is deemed invalid. | will
need your home address before | can make this valid. If you e-mail this back to me
before the 08 January 2021 | will then be able to process your representation.

Tricia Young

Licensing Officer

Please note | am only in the office on Monday, Tuesday and Thursday at the
present time

Southampton and Eastleigh Licensing Partnership
Southampton City Council

E-mail: licensing@southampton.gov.uk
Web: www.southampton.gov.uk/licensing or www.eastleigh.gov.uk/licensing
Post: Licensing — Southampton City Council

Civic Centre Southampton SO14 7LY

From: Josephine Winther Dahle ||| GG

Sent: 03 January 2021 17:07
To: Licensing <Licensing@southampton.gov.uk>
Subject: Licensing website enquiry

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not

Page 48
044



click links or open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the
content is safe.

Privacy statement:

Privacy check box

| have read the above and understand how the council will use my data

Name: Josephine Winther Dahle

e actres: I
Phone number:_

Premises name/vehicle plate number: 92 Avenue road
Licence reference number: 2020/04133/01SPRN Avenue road

Message: Please support us in improving this area, Bevis, and making it more
attractive to families with children, which it historically has not been.

| am objecting to the change of use of 92 avenue road.

We are trying to build a safe, family friendly community.

We are inundated with alcohol selling shops pubs stores in this area already..
It is COMPLETELY inapropriate for protecting children from harm, public
nuisance and safety, to have another one.

We in our residents association OARA have worked very hard over the past
ten years to improve this area and could do with some support in this.

This email is confidential but may have to be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act
2000, Environmental Information Regulations 2004 or data protection legislation. If you are not
the person or organisation it was meant for, apologies, please ignore it, delete it, and notify us.
SCC does not make legally binding agreements or accept formal notices/proceedings by email.
E-mails may be monitored. This email (and its attachments) is intended only for the use of the
person(s) to whom it is addressed, and may contain information that is privileged and/or
confidential. If it has come to you in error, you must take no action based on it, nor must you
copy or show it to anyone.

Page 49
045



Younﬂ, Tricia
.

From: John Hayward
Sent: 04 January 2021 13:11
To: Licensin

Subject: 92 Avenue Road 20/04133/01/SPRN
Attachments: $q 4.JPG; 5q 1JPG; 5q 5JPG; Sq 3JPG; Sq 2JPG; Sq 6JPG; Sq 7JPG

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

To Whom it May Concemn,
Ref: 20/04133/01SPRN 92 Avenus Road

As OARA (Outer Avenue Residents' Association) Chair |, and a number of local residents, are extremely concerned about a recent
licensing application for an off-licence operating from 6am to 11pm in the old Squirrel's motor spares shop which is on the comer of
Avenue Road and Earl's Road and has been derelict for some time.

My objections to the granting of this application are as follows:

Unsuitable Location
The proposed off-license would be situated right in a residential area on a comer, with double yellow lines. Other off-licences

nearby are on the edge of the area on main roads. Local parking Is very restricted, with cars parked opposite one another and
wheels up on the pavement, particularly in Avenue Road either side of the junction,

Risk to children

Mums and young children pass by this location during the week, going to and from school. Opening at 6am, drinking will be well
under-way by the time they pass in the morning, and simflarly on the return joumey, possibly encountering street drinking both
times. The doorway to the old shop has already become a reguiar spot for drinkers.

Local disruption
The application is for trading from 6am to 11pm seven days a week, with potential all-day disruption to residential life in the area,

particularly to houses nearby, including a row of terraces that directly adjoin the proposed shop, and surrounding properties. Street
drinkers can be noisy and a nuisance. Regular deliveries have the potential to entirely block the street at a busy junction.

Litter
We work hard with the council to keep our area relatively clean. Street drinking is a large contributory factor to litter in our streets.
Discarded cans and bottles are commonplace. Another off-licence in the heart of the area can only add to the problem.

Over-supply
Within a 5-minute walk of the proposed shop are 5 other off-licences. A little bit further afield also within easy walking distance, you

have two supermarkets. There is no shortage
of access to drink locally. Another outlet is unnecessary.

Context
| have included some pictures of the site to give some context. These illustrate the parking difficulties around that junction with cars

parked with wheels on the kerb in Avenue Road, and this is parking before the students retumn when it gets considerably worse.
Also shown is the shop sited on double yeliow lines on a comer, and the houses adjoining the property, plus surrounding
residences.

John Hayward (OARA Chair)

Page 50
046



Page 51
047



Page 52
048



Page 53
049



Page 54
050



Page 55
051



Page 56
052



Page 57
053



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk

To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 04 January 2021 17:42:04

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 5:42 PM on 04 Jan 2021 from Mr Philip Steart.

Application Summary

Address: 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mr Philip Steart
Email ]
Address: 76 Gordon Avenue, Southampton SO14 6WD

Comments Details

Comr_nenter Other
Type:

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 5:42 PM on 04 Jan 2021 There are a significant number of
such similar licensed premises in the area but all are on the
main roads - Lodge Rd, Portswood Rd, Bevois Valley. None
are in the middle of narrow residential streets.

The existing off-licences attract a significant number or
serious drinkers, who sit and gather outside. There is a
serious drink issue in this area which has been the cause of
violent incidents and intimidating behaviour. There are a
number of hostels for people with drink/drug issues in
neighbouring streets and the easy access to more alcohol
will not help meet their needs or tackle resulting social
issues on the streets.

The application is for trading from 6am to 11pm seven days
a week, with potential all-day disruption to residential life in
the area, particularly to houses nearby, including a row of
terraces that directly adjoin the proposed shop, and
surrounding properties. The noise and disruption from extra
cars, parking, street drinking, and shop front lighting would
cause serious and constant public nuisance from early
morning to late at night seven days a week. Sleep would be
affected. In term times this would also attract late night
student activity and drink-related noise and anti-social
behaviour- already a huge issue in this part of town.

We work hard with the council to keep our area relatively

Page 58
054



clean. Street drinking is a large contributory factor to litter
in our streets. Discarded cans and broken bottles are
commonplace and are already a health and safety issue.
Another off-licence in the heart of the area can only add to
the problem.

Page 59
055



From:

To: Licensing

Subject: License Application for 92, Avenue Road, Southampton SO14 6TX
Date: 05 January 2021 10:42:04

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

I understand there is an application for this site, formerly trading as 'SQUIRRELS'
Electrical Auto Repairs.

I Have seen a reference no. 2020/04133/01SPRN, but have not been able to access the
planning document to comment.

I wish to advise against allowing this type of use to go ahead.

1. There are already numerous similar outlets in the area, particularly Lodge Road.

2. Alcohol sales outlets of this type may attract some degree of loitering and litter. This
will devalue the living environment for residents.

3. Vehicles parking around site will increase. The nuisance and hazards in a narrow road
will impact on residents, Parking needs are already high..

4. There should be a vision and priority to convert this site to good housing.

Mr Chris Jackson
100, Alma Road
SO14 6UW

Page 60
056



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk

To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 05 January 2021 16:38:43

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 4:38 PM on 05 Jan 2021 from Mr michael ryan.

Application Summary

Address: 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mr michael ryan
Email I
Address: 82 Cambridge Road, Southampton SO14 6WA

Comments Details

Commenter
Type:
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Neighbour

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 4:38 PM on 05 Jan 2021 The proposed off-licence is in a
residential area with narrow streets. Double parking could
block access to emergency vehicles. These streets are not
suitable for large delivery vehicles. There are already a
number of existing off-licenses in the area. There are a
number of hostels in neighbouring streets for people with
drink or drug issues. These act as a focus for street
drinking,intimidating and rowdy behaviour, and the
associated litter. The fact that they plan to open from 6 a.m.
would indicate that they are deliberately targeting problem
drinkers. These people will not be helped by an off-licence
selling them strong lager and cheap spirits, as supply and
demand would dictate that these items would be sold. If
people need to drink alcohol for breakfast, then there needs
to be an off-licence on an industrial estate; not in a
residential area with narrow streets.

Page 61
057



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk

To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 06 January 2021 10:10:31

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 10:10 AM on 06 Jan 2021 from Dr Sarah Hall.

Application Summary

Address: 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Dr Sarah Hall
Email ]
Address: 2 Wykeham Close, Southampton SO16 7LZ

Comments Details

Comr_nenter Other
Type:

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 10:10 AM on 06 Jan 2021 Unsuitable Location
The proposed off-license would be situated right in a
residential area on a corner with double yellow lines. Other
off-licences nearby are on the edge of the area on main
roads.
Local parking is very restricted, with cars parked opposite
one another and wheels up on the pavement, particularly in
Avenue Road either side of the junction.

Risk to children

Mums and young children pass by this location during the
week, going to and from school. Opening at 6am, drinking
will be well under-way by the time they pass in the morning,
and similarly on the return journey, possibly encountering
street drinking both times.

Local disruption

The application is for trading from 6am to 11pm seven days
a week, with potential all-day disruption to residential life in
the area, particularly to houses nearby, including a row of
terraces that directly adjoin the proposed shop, and
surrounding properties.

Litter

Page 62
058



We work hard with the council to keep our area relatively
clean. Street drinking is a large contributory factor to litter
in our streets. Discarded cans and bottles are commonplace.
Another off-licence in the heart of the area can only add to
the problem.

Over-supply

Within a 5-minute walk of the proposed shop are 5 other
off-licences. A little bit further afield also within easy walking
distance, you have two supermarkets. There is no shortage
of access to drink locally. Another outlet is unnecessary.

As a local congregation (Avenue St Andrew's URC on the
Avenue) in normal times we support an alcohol recovery
group on church premises and our family centre is also
impacted by problem drinking within the family.

This is not a development we think is wise or necessary.

Page 63
059



From: publicaccess@southampton.gov.uk

To: Licensing
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 06 January 2021 11:13:50

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 11:13 AM on 06 Jan 2021 from Mrs Julia Webb.

Application Summary

Address: 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Tricia Young

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Julia Webb
Email I
Address: 101 Alma Road, Southampton SO14 6UY

Comments Details

Commenter
Type:
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Neighbour

Reasons
for
comment:

Comments: 11:13 AM on 06 Jan 2021 There are already a number of
stores/off licences within a short distance and to add
another in a residential area with narrow roads and parking
problems is totally unnecessary.

Page 64
060



From:

To: Licensing
Subject: 2020/04133/01SPRN | Premises Licence | Open for Consultation | 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Date: 05 January 2021 18:11:07

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

We are objecting to this planning application on the grounds below

CHILDREN

This proposal is in the middle of a relatively quiet residential area . they say they are turning the
premises into “modern state of the art convenience store designed to serve the local
community and those from further afield” any extra traffic attracted by this new proposal will
create more dangers for children getting to school and more air pollution with all its associated
health problems

CONGESTION

The road is already congested with parked cars and room for traffic only one way up or down
Earls Rd. Any extra cars will create a public nuisance.

ALCOHOL RELATED PROBLEMS

There are several residences in the are for people with drunk and drugs problems. Having easy
access to alcohol from 6am to 11pm could exacerbate a problem already in the area for these
people, as well as causing a nuisance to residents who have to live with the on street drinking
and the discarded bottles on pavements and roads ,quite often smashed .

We already have 5 offlicences in the vicinity ( 5 minutes walk. )

Yours faithfully

Maggie O’Connor and Mike Bell 60 Gordon Ave

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

Page 65
061



From:

To: Licensing

Subject: Premises Licence 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX
Date: 04 January 2021 12:51:53

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Re Premises L.icence
Avenue Road Local 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX

Ref. No: 2020/04133/01SPRN|Status: Open for Consultation|Applicant Name: Agni
Retails Ltd

My Name : Catherine Louise Wigham

My address: 146 Earls Road Southampton SO14 6TL

I would like to make a representation about the above application. My concerns/objections
are in relation to

e The prevention of public nuisance
and
e Public safety

It is important to note that while the property's address is 92 Avenue Road - the building is
actually on the corner of Earls Road and Avenue Road with window frontage on both
roads, and the front door access at an angle on both roads.

1. Trucks/delivery Vans

Avenue Road is very narrow where cars have to park on the kerb of pavements for cars to
pass, it is very difficult for larger vehicles to pass by. Earls Road is very congested -
being one of a few roads in the immediate vicinity without resident parking it is nearly
always full of parked cars, and even residents find finding parking spaces difficult. There
is only room for one car at a time to drive down the road, and with no spaces vehicles
frequently have to wait at either Avenue Road end/Lodge Road end to allow cars to pass.

It is likely therefore that trucks/delivery vans may have to block the roads whilst making
their deliveries.

All this compromises public safety and public nuisance factors

Page 66
062



Deliveries will also increase the number of trucks driving down already very congested
residential streets and on roads already affected by potholes/dips. (One was repaired last
year , but the concern is that the number of trucks could make this worse again)

2.The proposed opening hours of 6am - 11pm

This premises is in middle of residential area with residents next door and opposite. The
long trading hours are likely to increase both pedestrians,and car traffic at unsocial hours.
It is hard to see what steps the owners could have to stop this becoming a public nuisance
to local residents disturbed by additional noise at these times - especially early mornings
and late nights

3. Street Drinking

There is already an issue with street drinking, which | have relayed to the police on several
previous occasions, The current vacant premises is actually a place where this happens,
(people gather in the porchway) as well as an empty garage directly opposite the premises.

The concern is that with alcohol available literally ‘on the door step’ this will increase,
causing a public nuisance and compromising public safety.

Thank you for taking the time to note our representations.

Page 67
063



From:

To: Licensing

Subject: Objection to application 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 07 January 2021 17:15:22

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

The word NEED comes to mind with this application!
There are enough off licences in the area, there really is no NEED for another one.
This is a convenience store by any other name with opening hours 6am to 11pm.?

Also there are enough convenience stores and supermarkets conveniently
situated within a mile radius, again there is ABSOLUTELY NO NEED!

Parking must also be taken into consideration, it is impossible to park in Avenue
Road anyway! Napoleon once said that "The English are a nation of
shopkeepers"! It's pretty certain he didn't have Portswood in mind but it looks as if

On safety grounds emergency vehicles have great difficulty in these small roads
as of this moment, it would be made even worse!

The delivery and collection vehicles would also be a problem and the noise
associated with their activities. The local residents would waken to the sounds of
bottles and sundry items being delivered and empties collected, a noisy practice at
any time of the day!.

Rubbish would also be a problem. Lodge Road and Portswood Road are
festooned with discarded items at the best of times, on windy days even more
so.

Anita Mary Hockey
35 Cambridge Road
Portswood
Southampton
sol46ta

Page 68
064



Reference 2020/04133/01SPRN

Type New

Category Premises Licence

Status Open for Consultation
Applicant Agni Retails Ltd

Trading Name Avenue Road Local

Address 92 Avenue Road Southampton SO14 6TX

To Licensing Committee Members & Officers

In regards to the above referenced application | want to air my objections in the most
stringent manner and | shall outline my reasons below in sections.

Current Situation Of Area:

In the 32 years that | have resided in the area and have been a frequent user of Earls
Road and Avenue Road as a pedestrian and motorist | have found this junction and
area has evolved into a hub of much anti social behaviour where there is already a
regular occurrence of street congregation and drinking at various times of the day by
people on the corners of this junction, in the doorway of the very premises that is in
question as due to the fact this premises ceased trading as an auto electrical garage
its doorway became a "bench" to congregate and consume alcohol.

On the opposing corner is an HMO that has had squatters and drug related activity
over the past year and its boundary wall used as another "bench" which for one to

walk past is not very comfortable or reassuring and when | say walking past it is at
any hour of day be the morning, afternoon or evening when people are going about
their normal daytime activities.

This proposed premises will further fuel this street drinking culture that was rife
during the previous lockdown in spring 2020.

As there is no CCTV in the outer avenue area to the best of my knowledge Earls Road
and Avenue Road have become regular areas of drug dealing where meets are
arranged again not in the blanket of darkness as one would assume but throughout
the day at various times.

Another issue is there are HWIOs that have been let to people with little care or pride
of the area whom also partake in the street drinking culture where they would
congregate outside their residence which again creates an intimidating and
uncomfortable atmosphere.

This proposed premises seeking an alcohol licence will further fuel this anti social
behaviour and uncultured habit.

Page 69
065



This is very much the current picture of the area but to mention the rubbish that is
strewn around and flying tipping which leaves nothing regal to 'Earls’' Road nor
Avenue Road.

Current Traffic Situation

With narrow roads and footpaths and many vehicles especially when students are
present makes this cross junction hazardous for both pedestrian and motorist alike
not to forget cyclists as vehicles would park right on the corners and block the view
of road users, we personally have had two incidents where due to dangerous parking
hindering view resulting in two collisions over the years; how many others have there
been that we do not know of??

To give an indication to how tight this junction is a 6/6.5 metre mercedes sprinter van
would have difficulty to take any left or right turn from any direction this is not to take
into account the amount of smaller vehicles that can arrive at this junction at any
given time that makes a challenging situation for all.

The proposed premises would add to this danger as potential customers will not find
a parking space hence will park on one of the 4 corners adding to what is already an
awfully difficult junction to tackle. Also in direct relation to the proposed use of
premises will be that it is most likely that the deliveries would come by a commercial
vehicle of minimum gross tonnage of 7.5 ton going up to a possible 20 ton vehicle,
with the current level of street parking there would NEVER be kerbside parking
available to it which means it will be constantly parked in the middle of the road
creating a complete block of one of the roads to flowing traffic which would be most
frustrating if morning/evening rush hours or school run time for the local school
nearby. Take note of my above example regards the van.

This blocking of the road by the delivery vehicles would create conflict between road
users, we have this situation at the bottom of Gordon Avenue where there is a public
house and off licence on each corner.

Also the bottom of Earls Road with its junction with Lodge Road gives a great
indication as to what could occur at this end of the road. SCC parking have failed to
stop take away delivery vehicles parking at the bottom of the road where they block
the passing area for vehicles I think they will fail to prevent such a situation at this
crossroads in question.

Residents Comfort, Tranquility & Safety:

Currently already due to the various above scenarios residents in the immediate and
nearby proximity to this premises have to put up with all types of crime anti social
behaviour and disturbances along with regular occurrences of fly tipping on the
footpaths which OARA can confirm. This "local” shop could become a hub for such
activities hence rendering the shop everything but convenient to the locals especially

Page 70
066



with those long opening hours and in turn will be an addition to what residents have
to live with and tolerate.

I personally have been told by a student who resided in the area a few years ago how
she felt she could not go out after dark alone due to the people standing either on the
street or outside the HMOs drinking late into the night especially at one particular
house, it was reported to the local pcso; this was very by on Alma Road Earls Road
vicinity where for nearly every evening and night there was a regular group who
would drink at their front door and urinate in the hedge of the house opposite, | have
personally seen this all myself and only came to end when the people moved out only
recently. If this shop was open they would have then been spreading their
intimidating presence between the house and the proposed shop to buy more alcohol.

What is most remarkable is that the applicant has a number of various cost centres
and personally resides 25 miles away in Portsmouth (I know this by the information at
Companies House that is in the public domain and available to anyone) which means
that though it would be their name on the licence they would most likely have minimal
presence at the proposed business to make certain that licensing conditions are
being adhered to and to make certain that his business does not affect the locale, also
with his most likely minimal presence there would be little reassurance that his staff
would adhere and comply with the licensing conditions, they would not want
confrontation and challenge which can result in the wrong people making alcohol
purchases. So with this not being the only business and living so far away from the
proposed use of the premises does not install confidence in the residents and | am
certain officers would also feel feel same.

1 think | have covered all areas that apply to a firm and legitimate reason or argument
to support an objection that members of the licensing committee would be using in
their final decision. | therefore feel that | have covered those areas with evidence and
true accounts of what | have seen myself over time, | feel that | have put a strong case
and vivid picture of what is and what could be if this historic premises becomes a
"modern local shop"” which these days is far far from what a local shop used to be in
days gone by hence plead that a licence is not granted.

S Afzal Esq
82 Gordon Avenue
Southampton

Page 71
067



From:

To: Licensing
Subject: Premises License application ref 2020/04133/01SPRN 92 Avenue Road SO14
Date: 07 January 2021 13:21:45

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Karen Head,

I am writing to object to this application for a License to sell alcoholic drinks running from 6am to 11pm on a
daily basis.

1. the site and nuisance

The position of this site at a junction of Avenue rd and Earls road is a totally unsuitable place for such
premises. Both roads are narrow residential roads with pavements blocked by parked cars and double yellow
lines around the junctions . Experience of an existing store down the road at Lodge Road leads to people
congregating at the corner, smoking and drinking and littering both road and pavement and blocking both
pavement and road , plus parking on the double yellow lines.

This application is bound to cause similar problems becoming a public nuisance.

2. Crime and disorder.

We already have to be aware of providing opportunities for local drinking /smoking and drugs higher up the
road with specialist housing for homeless people and our general mix of residents.

We would not wish to encourage conditions conducive to opportunist crime which already happens, thefts and
drunken damage.

3.Access and safety

These roads are in very regular use by motor traffic. Avenue road pavements are so blocked by cars that as a
pedestrian ( speaking personally) the only option is to walk along the middle of the road, a safety hazard.
The actual junction is on a regular access route for residents to reach their homes from Lodge road up as far as
Gordon Avenue. Increasing traffic and people hanging around on the street corner becomes a public safety
issue.

4. Children

Bevois Town primary school has entry from Earls road (below Lodge rd) as well as Cedar road the next road
along towards The Avenue, this corner is on the route to school and the bus stop in Lodge rd.

5. Planning status.

We have been unable to ascertain the present status of this long closed shop. Personally | have not seen
customers for over a decade at least. The last planning applications date back to 1951 and 1968 for long
defunct functions.

I do not know how relevant this is. There is NO premise under the title Avenue Road Local as quoted in the
application.

Yours sincerely

SESwallow (outer Avenue Residents' Association

78 Gordon Avenue

Page 72
068



From:

To: Licensing
Subject: No 92 Avenue Road (ex Squirrel Auto)
Date: 07 January 2021 15:36:25

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

To The Licensing Officer.

| refer to the application for Sale of Alcohol at the above address from 6am to 11pm for Consumption off the
Premises. This application is to be decided tomorrow, 8,.1. 21, and | apologise for the late entry of my
objection.

| object strongly to this application for the following reasons:

The site is in the middle of a mostly quiet residential area. There are many other outlets for the sale of alcohol in
close proximity on the surrounding main roads. There is no need for another off licence. .

There is very restricted parking on this corner of Avenue and Earls Road. , and there are already frequent
unpleasant ‘face-off' incidents in the single file route along Earls Road.
These would assuredly increase, especially as the application refers to attracting clientele from further afield'.

An increase in litter and nuisance would be an almost certain result if this application went forward, particularly
regarding the hours of opening.

6am is far too early for the sale of alcohol for off premises consumption in this densely populated residential
area.

As well as many family homes, there are several hostels, halfway houses, nursing homes, children's homes,
HMO's and of course, much student accommodation.. All classes and types would be badly affected if this
application was approved.

A well run convenience store might be a welcome amenity in place of the present derelict building, but one
which adds to the existing problems of alcoholism, nuisance, litter and bad behaviour is certainly not advisable.

Please refuse this application for the sale of alcohol for off premises consumption from 6am to 11pm daily.

Linda Pritchard

54, Gordon Avenue,
Portswood,
Southampton.

Sent from my iPad

Page 73
069



From:
To: Licensing
Cc:
Subject: Objection to licensing application at 92 Avenue Road ref 2020/04133/01SPRN
Date: 08 January 2021 12:17:43

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

From: Hilary Jackson of 39 Gordon Avenue, Portswood, Southampton SO14 6WH
I

To: Licensing Department, Southampton City Council

Concerning: ref 2020/04133/01SPRN - application for “Sale of Alcohol for Consumption Off

the Premises” at 92 Avenue Rd in Portswood

| wish to object to the application for a licence for “Sale of Alcohol for Consumption Off the

Premises” at 92 Avenue Rd in Portswood. | understand from the information provided on the

licensing site that any objection must engage with at least one of the headings below:

a. The prevention of crime and disorder

b. Public safety

c. The prevention of public nuisance

d. The protection of children from harm
The grounds for my objections are set out below and | have indicated which of the objectives
above | think are relevant:

1. Traffic related matters (b & c & d)
A busy business on this corner would generate additional traffic and parking which
would increase the risk to public safety (b) and create a public nuisance (c).The
application states it would be a “modern state of the art convenience store designed
to serve the local community and those from further afield”. It is fair to assume that a
number of those from “further afield” are likely to travel to the premises in a car and
need somewhere to park.
The premises for which the licence is being applied for sit at a busy crossroads of Earls
Rd and Avenue Rd in the middle of a grid of residential streets. All the neighbouring
premises, for at least a 100m yards in each direction, are residential properties. Both
streets are very narrow streets. The junction has double yellow lines on all four corners.
Cars park on both sides of both roads and many of them in Avenue Rd  park across the
pavement to avoid blocking the road. As a result they block the pavement, meaning
pedestrians have to move into the road to get by. This is even more difficult for parents
with buggies or the disabled. In both roads there is only room for one line of traffic,
meaning that vehicles frequently have to back up to allow another to pass, causing
congestion along the road and at this cross roads. The parking in the area is at saturation
point because of the number of high density HMQ's, including student dwellings and all
surrounding areas having parking zones, displacing other parking into this grid of streets.
Avenue Rd is also a road which has controlled traffic, with a street block planters half
way along between this corner and the Avenue. These were installed to reduce the flow
of traffic in these residential streets, increase safety and prevent it being used as a rat
run. It is also an area which is being considered for development as an active travel zone
in line with SCC and government policies - discouraging traffic and encouraging cyclists
and pedestrians.

Page 74
070



It would seem relevant that previous businesses since 1968 have been very low key in
terms of footfall - a stationery/printing premises and Squirrels which had specialist car
hire and associated matters. There was little evidence of any actual custom in the shop
front section. And no excess addional traffic or parking.

It is also likely that an alcohol sales licence would attract additonal custom and traffic on
top of any other intended convenience store use (in itself inappropriate in this location
for many of the reasons above). There is also no space for larger delivery vehicles which
such a business would require -which would cause additonal hasards were a licensed
premises to be allowed.

There are three licensed stores on nearby corners with double yellow lines: at the
junction of Earls & Lodge Rds, Spear & Lodge Rds and Gordon Avenue & Portswood Rd.
At all three stores customers arriving in cars routinely park on the double yellow lines to
“pop” into the shop. This compounds the congestion, blocks important sight lines for
cars entering or leaving the roads and makes it more dangerous for pedestrians trying to
cross. It is impossible for wheelchair users to access the dropped kerb. It seems fair to
assume that human nature would not be any different at this proposed licensed store.
All of these stores are also actually situated on main roads not in the middle of a grid of
narrow residential streets.

2. Alcohol Consumption and Public Drinking (a,b &c)
The existing off-licences and licensed stores attract a significant number of serious
drinkers, who sit and gather outside, sometimes in a state of drink. This causes anxiety
for ordinary passers by. This corner is already the site of gathering for drinking (and
sometimes drug related activities). There is a serious drink issue in this area which has
been the cause of violent incidents and intimidating behaviour. This has included public
urination in the streets and in front gardens. There are a number of hostels for people
with drink/drug issues in neighbouring streets and the easy access to more alcohol will
not help meet their needs or tackle resulting social issues on the streets. In term times
this would also attract late night student activity and drink-related noise and anti-social
behaviour- already a huge issue in this part of town.

3. Protecting children from harm (d)
As a governor of the local primary school (with one of its main pupil entrances situated
lower down Earl’s Rd) | am keenly aware that this premises is very much on the route
that parents and children take to school. It is not a good example to them to have to
pass a premises where all day access to alcohol is available and where, given other local
precedents, serious drinkers are likely to gather.

4. Opening hours and public nuisance (a,b&c& d)
| note that the application is for a license from 6 in the morning to 11 at night, seven
days a week. As described above, this premises is in the midst of residential dwellings
not on a main road. The noise and disruption from extra cars, parking, street drinking,
and shop front lighting would cause serious and constant public nuisance from early
morning to late at night seven days a week. Sleep would be affected. As also mentioned
above, this area also houses a significant number of students in term time who would be
attracted by late night sales. Whilst the students themselves are usually a decent lot, we
are constantly plagued ( in non- Covid times) by late night street and party noise, fuelled
by drink. A license on this premises at these times would only exacerbate this issue —and
cause genuine stress and mental health issues to nearby residents. The police and

Page 75
071



environmental health teams are aware.
In addition the litter and mess caused by street drinking is another nuisance and poses
another risk to public safety. Cans and broken bottles are a regular feature in the streets
near existing outlets. There are at least 5 other licensed stores within a short distance,
all on main roads, which benefit from regular SCC street sweeping in a way that side
roads do not, often relying on residents, in normal times, to arrange community minded
litter picks.

For all of these reasons above | urge you to reject this application for Sale of Alcohol for

Consumption Off the Premises at this property.

Thank you for your consideration. | would be grateful if you would confirm receipt of this

objection. Thank you.

Hilary Jackson, 8 January 2021

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

H Virus-free. www.avg.com

Page 76
072



9 Avenue Road
Southampton
SO14 6TR

8 January 2021

Licensing Team
Southampton City Council
Civic Centre

Southampton

SO14 7LY

To whom it may concern

Deadline for comments: Friday 8 January 2021

Off Licence Application 92 Avenue Road, Portswood, Southampton. SO14 6TX
Reference 20/04133/01SPRN

Objection.

The Outer Avenue Residents’ Association works tirelessly to make this an attractive
area for all to live in but particularly permanent established families and older
residents who have a long term interest in the wellbeing of the area. The area does,
however, have many houses in multiple occupation the majority occupied by students.

There are plenty of other off licence outlets in walking distance on the east, south and
west sides of Outer Avenue, a resident’s particular choice being driven by his or her
starting point in Outer Avenue. The list includes a branch of Lidl opened only in
November 2020 in Bannister Road on the old Jaguar dealer site, Charlie’s Booze at
the junction of Gordon Avenue and Portswood Road and Bitter Virtue in Cambridge
Road (a specialist beer outlet). In Portswood Road there are branches of Waitrose and
Sainsbury’s and in Lodge Road a Tesco petrol station with various other convenience
stores selling alcohol intermingled. These are characterised by being on main
thoroughfares and clustered with other commercial operations with the exception of
the specialist Bitter Virtue.

Number 92 Avenue Road is not the right place for an expansion of opportunities for
buying alcohol. The proposal brings off sales into the heart of a dense residential area
of narrow roads and pavements.

Public/Road Safety

There is great pressure on parking places with multi occupied closely grouped
housing common place. Cars are routinely parked substantially on the pavements in
the sections of Avenue Road either side of the application site and vehicles are unable
to pass easily and not at all if there are no free sections of road adjacent to the
pavement to slip into in Earls Road. Where Earl’s Road joins Lodge Road there is a
Premier Convenience Store and a takeaway.

Page 77
073



Number 92 Avenue Road sits on the corner of the crossroads formed by Avenue Road
and Earl’s Road. There are double yellow lines on all four corners. lllegal parking
outside number 92 Avenue Road will reduce sight lines and therefore road safety.
Notably Avenue Road is indicated from The Avenue as a cycle route to Portswood.
Presumably the Council in making this designation saw Avenue Road as a safer and
more congenial route for cyclists than the parallel Lodge Road with its commercial
functions including off licensed premises.

Such is the issue of lack of parking spaces and difficulty of traffic flow that there has
been recent work with the Council to explore amongst other solutions the possibility
of formal one way working but survey work involving households was inconclusive

as to acceptability.

The above comments can be categorised as public nuisance issues and added below.
Prevention of Public Nuisance
We already experienced instances of public nuisance:

o Litter
Prior to the covid outbreak the residents’ association had a schedule of litter
picks on Sundays once a month. Litter is not just an issue immediately outside
premises selling alcohol. Cans are left balancing on walls and street furniture,
thrown into gardens and behind hedges and abandoned in planters. They rattle
down the road blown by the wind until squashed. Casual drinkers just drop
them wherever they happen to be when finished with, sometimes half empty.
Why should public spirited residents be required to pick up more litter
generated from within its boundaries by a new off licence? | have myself
swept up on a Sunday morning dangerous shards of glass from a heavy duty
broken bottle scattered across the carriageway and pavement.

e Loitering of alcoholics
We have had alcoholics sitting on the front steps of the house opposite us in
the afternoon. It is disturbing to have our movements both in and outside being
observed by these people as well as hearing their loud, unedifying
conversations. The wall outside St Barnabas Church in Rose Road is also a
favourite spot and there is accommodation for alcoholics at Holmhurst in
Gordon Avenue who have not been seen currently tracking across Outer
Avenue to get supplies. A new off licence at 92 Avenue Road will encourage
loitering alcoholics into the physical centre of our community.
We have had men coming up our drive to urinate against the side of our house
in daylight.

e Misguided traffic
There are waist high planters blocking Avenue Road to the east of the
application site (and also at the junction of Alma Road and Gordon Avenue)
designed to stop rat running. Any driver approaching from The Avenue

Page 78
074



direction and unaware performs multipoint turns to find another route the road
being narrow and residents’ cars parked.

e Noise.
It is now customary for users of mobile phones to hold loud conversations in
public places totally unaware of others in the vicinity. A new off licence at 92
Avenue Road will act as a hub for such public nuisance from 6am to 11pm. To
this add sounds of car doors and vehicles being positioned for parking or
retreating when not found.

In short it can be anticipated that the centring of a new off licence in Outer Avenue at
92 Avenue Road will exacerbate these problems.

Protection of Children from Harm

e Loitering drinkers. | myself feel edgy when these people are around. There
seem to be more school children passing our property and with the climate
warming agenda it is important that pupils feel safe walking to local primary
and secondary schools and school runs are reduced as a result. A new off
licence at number 92 Avenue Road runs contrary to this necessity.

e Mothers and children need to take to the road because of extensive car parking
on pavements which are narrow. Those coming by car to purchase alcohol will
make this necessity even more hazardous. From my observation the covid
lockdowns have increased the number of families with young children
adopting this as a pedestrian route to The Common.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Outer Avenue Residents’ Association has a greening gardening group designed to
engendered community cohesion and has successfully raised money for and planted
decorative trees and provides flowering plants and bulbs for and maintains a variety
of planters and tubs and strips of ground. There have been instances of malicious
damage and it would be unfortunate if the coming of another off licence were to
increase wanton removal of plant material, cause plants to be squashed when retaining
walls are used as seats whilst imbibing or used as depositories for empty containers.
Clearly I want to protect the residents’ efforts in this regard.

Conclusion

In conclusion the granting of this application will be a retrograde and damaging step
for this locality in my opinion.

Yours faithfully

Ann Woolnough

Page 79
075



From:

To: Licensing

Cc:

Subject: Lodge/Avenue Rd Licencing Application Objection 2020/04133/01SPRN 92 Avenue RD
Date: 08 January 2021 16:23:08

Lodge/Avenue Rd Licencing Application Objection 2020/04133/01SPRN 92 Avenue
RD

Please find my Objection to the application for a new Off Licence in Lodge Rd. | feel the
local residents have done a better job of putting forward local reasons for refusal so
have used that as the basis.
Over a number of years we as ward Cllrs have engaged Community Safety and the
Police on the AS issues that Lodge Rd has caused from the various takeaways and
shops. We are working with the Locals and Council departments to improve the area
including the street drinkers and rough sleepers problems we have on this road, this
premises if granted will add to an already bad situation and I strongly feel we should be
using all the tools in the box to improve an area and not add to the problems that
approving this application will bring.
| strongly Object to this application on the following grounds;

Arguments for refusing licensing application

= The proposed licensed store would be situated on a narrow cross roads with double
yellow lines on each corner. Other similar off licenses e.g on the corner of Earls and Lodge
Rd, Spear and Lodge Rd and Gordon Ave and Portswood Rd, all have double yellow lines
which are regularly parked on each day by customers of these stores. This affects public
safety as this blocks and unsights traffic seeking to enter/exit these roads. It also creates
danger for pedestrians seeking to cross between illegally parked cars. The previous
business on these premises was a low key electrical business with few actual callers.

= Local parking is very restricted, with cars already parked on both sides of Lodge and
Avenue Rd, opposite one another and wheels up on the pavement, the latter particularly
in Avenue Road. This also means there is only room for one line of traffic, with cars
frequently needing to back up to allow others through. Any increase in traffic/parking,
including from large delivery vehicles which would not normally need to pass through
these streets, would exacerbate this already unsafe situation. The owner indicates in the
application that they are seeking to attract custom from further afield- presumably
arriving in a vehicle.

= There are a significant number of such similar licensed premises in the area but all are on
the main roads - Lodge Rd, Portswood Rd, Bevois Valley. None are in the middle of
narrow residential streets.

» The existing off-licences attract a significant number or serious drinkers, who sit and
gather outside. There is a serious drink issue in this area which has been the cause of
violent incidents and intimidating behaviour. There are a number of hostels for people
with drink/drug issues in neighbouring streets and the easy access to more alcohol will not
help meet their needs or tackle resulting social issues on the streets.

= Parents and young children pass by this location during the week, going to and from
school. Opening at 6am, drinking will be well under-way by the time they pass in the
morning, and similarly on the return journey, possibly encountering street drinking both
times.

Page 80
076



= The application is for trading from 6am to 11pm seven days a week, with potential all-day
disruption to residential life in the area, particularly to houses nearby, including a row of
terraces that directly adjoin the proposed shop, and surrounding properties. The noise
and disruption from extra cars, parking, street drinking, and shop front lighting would
cause serious and constant public nuisance from early morning to late at night seven days
a week. Sleep would be affected. In term times this would also attract late night student
activity and drink-related noise and anti-social behaviour- already a huge issue in this part
of town.
= We work hard with the council to keep our area relatively clean. Street drinking is a large
contributory factor to litter in our streets. Discarded cans and broken bottles are
commonplace and are already a health and safety issue. Another off-licence in the heart
of the area can only add to the problem.
Within a 5-minute walk of the proposed shop are 5 other off-licences. A little bit further afield
also within easy walking distance, you have three supermarkets. There is no shortage of access
to drink locally. Another outlet is unnecessary

Councillor Jacqui Rayment

Deputy Leader

Councillor for Bevois Ward

Cabinet Member for Customer and Organisation

I —

Southampton City Council
Civic Centre
Southampton SO14 7LY

Page 81
077



Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee

Procedure — Applications etc. under the Licensing Act 2003 or
Gambling Act 2005

1.

A hearing will be held to decide applications, etc., under the Licensing Act 2003, where
there have been relevant representations from one or more of the responsible
authorities or other persons. The parties to the hearing will have the chance to be heard.
They are also entitled to be helped or represented by another person if due written
notice is given in advance.

Hearings will take place before a Sub-Committee comprising three members of the
Licensing Committee. One of these members will be elected Chair of the Sub-
Committee for that hearing.

Please note that for day time hearings the Sub-Committee will normally adjourn for lunch
at 1:00 p.m. and that comfort breaks will be taken at the discretion of the Chair at
appropriate points during the meeting.

Preliminary matters

4,
5.

10.

The Chair will introduce those present.

The Chair will check whether any of the Sub-Committee members has a “disclosable

pecuniary”, “personal” or “pecuniary” interest.

The Chair will check whether all the parties are present at the hearing, and if any are
not, whether they have told the Council that they do not wish to attend or be
represented. If any party who was expected to attend has not done so, the Sub-
Committee will decide whether to hold the hearing in that party’s absence, or to adjourn
it to another date. Hearings will be adjourned if the Sub-Committee considers this
necessary in the public interest, if that is possible. If the Sub-Committee decides to hold
the hearing in a party’s absence, they will still consider any written information received.

In the case of an application for variation or a new licence, the Sub-Committee’s legal
advisor will ask the applicant or their advisor for confirmation that the required public
notices have been displayed where they can conveniently be read from the exterior of
the premises and that notice was given in a local newspaper within eleven working days
of the day on which the application was received by the licensing authority.

Normally, hearings will be open to the public. However, the Sub-Committee may exclude
the public from the hearing (or part of it) if they think the public interest in doing so
outweighs the public interest in having the hearing in public. If the public are excluded,
any of the parties to the hearing, and/or anyone helping or representing them, may also
be excluded.

The Chair will propose a motion that the public and the press be excluded from the
hearing while the Sub-Committee considers the matter. Ordinarily the legal advisor and
democratic support officer will remain (see paragraph 30 (b) below).

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 provide an entitlement for
the public to film, photograph and audibly record (“record”) public meetings. However, by
virtue of Schedule 6, paragraph 58 of the Licensing Act 2003 and section 101 (15) of the
Local Government Act 1972, Licensing Act 2003 hearings are not covered by the
entitlement to film as of right. The Council’'s general approach is to encourage openness
and transparency in all its dealings and the general presumption is that filming or
recording of hearings shall generally be permitted where due notice has been provided
in advance of the hearing. Nonetheless the following shall apply:

LA2003 and GA2005 procedure

Page 82
078



Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee

11.

12.

13.

i) Filming / recording / photographing hearings shall only be permitted with the express
permission of the Chair. Such permission may include restrictions to protect children,
vulnerable persons or others that object to being filmed / photographed / recorded.

i) Requests to film / record / photograph should be made with sufficient notice in
advance of the hearing. Late requests may not be granted if there shall be a delay to
proceedings as a result.

iii) Every party to the hearing and any witnesses shall have the opportunity to object and
those representations shall be considered by the Sub-Committee.

iv) No filming, photography or sound recording shall be permitted of any person under
18 years of age.

v) No person shall be put under any pressure to consent to such and no payment for
such consent shall be given.

vi) The Chair shall have the final say as to whether any filming, photography or
recording is allowed (including the extent to which permission is granted e.g. the
parts of the meeting, the individuals concerned or the arrangement of the recording
equipment).

vii) All directions given by the Chair shall be fully complied with and the Chair shall have
the absolute discretion to withdraw permission to film, photograph or record in the
event the same causes an obstruction or interferes with the general conduct of the
hearing, including the impeding of the giving of proper evidence.

A party may have asked for someone else to appear at the hearing to make a point or
points that may help the Sub-Committee reach a decision. It is up to the Sub-Committee
to decide whether that person should be heard, although permission will not be refused
unreasonably. Such a person is referred to as a “witness” in this procedure.

Where application has been made, in advance of the hearing, that it should be
conducted in private (e.g. by the Police in review or summary review proceedings)
reports shall be prepared and presented as confidential so that the Committee can make
a meaningful determination in accordance with Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 to exclude the press and public. It is important to note that
reports presenting Licensing Act 2003 matters are not required to be published in
advance. However, certain limited information must be published in accordance with the
Licensing Act 2003 (Licensing Authority’s Register) (Other Information) Regulations
2005 and section 8 of the Licensing Act 2003.

The Chair will then explain the procedure that will follow.

General information on the conduct of the hearing

14. Each party is entitled to:

15.
16.

(a) Give further information in response to any point that the Council told them before
the hearing they would like clarified;

(b) With the permission of the Chair, seek clarification on any point by any other party;
(c) Address the Sub-Committee.
Members of the Sub-Committee may also seek clarification of any party or witness.

At the Chair’s discretion, the Sub-Committee’s legal advisor may ask any questions he
or she thinks are relevant.

LA2003 and GA2005 procedure

Page 83
079



Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee

17. Unless the Council has requested in advance that a particular point be clarified, new
documentary or other evidence may not be submitted for the first time at the hearing,
unless all the other parties agree.

18. Members of the Sub-Committee will have read all the papers included in the agenda for
the hearing before the hearing starts. The parties are requested not to spend
unnecessary time repeating evidence which is already in the papers and which is not
disputed.

19. Evidence that is not relevant to the case, or to the promotion of the four licensing
objectives, will be disregarded.

Hearing Procedure

20.If any party has asked permission for a withess or witnesses to appear, the Sub-
Committee will decide whether they should be heard (see paragraph 10 above).

21. All parties will be allowed a similar (and maximum) amount of time to put their case, and
ask guestions of other parties, subject to the Chair's discretion to not hear repetitive
matters or questions.

The applicant

22. The applicant for the licence (or their representative) or the applicant in review
proceedings, may present their case.

23. If the Sub-Committee permits, the applicant may call those withesses whose names
have been provided in advance to support their application.

24. Where a group of withesses wish to speak in support of the application for similar
reasons, one person should, where possible, act as spokesperson for the whole group.
The Sub-Committee may reasonably refuse permission for a withess to be heard if their
evidence simply repeats points already made.

25. The Chair will invite those making representations to seek clarification on any point
made by the applicant. The Chair will decide in which order those making
representations will be invited to put their questions.

26. Members of the Sub-Committee or the Legal Advisor, if so permitted by the Chair, may
also seek clarification of the applicant or any of their witnesses.

The representations

27. Where there is more than one person making a representation, the Chair will decide the
order in which they may put their case. If there is a representation from one or more of
the responsible authorities, their representatives will normally be invited to put their case
first.

28. The following procedure will apply to each person making a representation in turn:-
(a) The person making a representation (or their representative) may present their case.

(b) If the Sub-Committee permits, the person making a representation may call those
withesses whose names have been provided in advance to support their objection.

(c) Where a group of witnesses wish to speak in support of the objection for similar
reasons, where possible, one person should act as spokesperson for the whole
group. The Sub-Committee may reasonably refuse permission for a witness to be
heard if their evidence simply repeats points already made.

LA2003 and GA2005 procedure
Page 84
080



Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee

(d) The Chair will invite the applicant to seek clarification on any points made by those
making representations.

(e) Members of the Sub-Committee or the Legal Advisor, if so permitted by the Chair,
may seek clarification of those making representations or any witnesses.

Summing up

29. The Chair will invite each person making a representation to make a final statement or
sum up their case.

30. The Chair will invite the applicant to make a final statement or sum up their case.
Sub-Commiittee’s decision
31.

(a) At the end of the hearing the Sub-Committee will move to private session whilst it
considers the matter.

(b) The Sub-Committee’s legal advisor will remain to provide legal advice and the
democratic services officer will remain to record the decision. Details of any legal
advice will be recorded and referenced in the decision and reasons.

(c) The parties will be invited to wait to be informed of the outcome.

(d) As soon as the decision is reached, the public and press will be invited to return to
the room in which the hearing took place, and the Chair will announce the decision
and the reasons for it.

(e) If aroom is available, the Committee may retire to deliberate and make its decision

(f) All parties will be formally notified in writing of the decision and reasons as soon as
possible.

In most cases the Sub-Committee will announce the decision at the conclusion of the
hearing. In certain cases where this is not possible due to time constraints (and the
Hearings Regulations permit — Regulation 26 (1) sets out those hearings where delay is not
possible) the decision shall be made within 5 working days beginning with the day of the
hearing or the last day of the hearing.

LA2003 and GA2005 procedure
Page 85
081



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes Of The Previous Meeting (Including Matters Arising)
	7 APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCE - AVENUE ROAD LOCAL , 92 AVENUE ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO14 6TX



